Tehama County Special Education Local Plan Area



A Cooperative Activity of the County's School Districts and Department of Education

Local Plan for Special Education

Approved by: Tehama SELPA Administrators Committee 1/11/18 California Department of Education 12/12/18

Local Plan Amendment Committee

The Tehama County SELPA wishes to acknowledge the Local Plan Amendment Committee for the many hours of time that they each devoted to developing this revision of the Local Plan. The committee members were:

> General Educator: Cheryl Williams & Rod Stone Special Educators: David Torgersrud, Jocelyn Kent, Joe Ahmadi, & Paul Trujillo Parents: Kathy Schmitz District Administrators: John Burch, Todd Brose, & William McCoy SELPA Administration: Heidi Schueller (2013-2015); Veronica Coates (2015-2017) Consultant: Tom Neely

Table of Contents

Participating Local Educational Agencies	1
Certification by Administrative and Fiscal Agency SED-LP 1	
Certification by CAC SED-LP2	
Federal Assurance Statements	
Governance and Administrative Structure	9
Governance Council	
Executive Committee	
Special Focus Committees	
SELPA Administrator	11
Regionalized Services and Program Specialists	14
Assurances	14
Program Specialists	14
Roles and Responsibilities of Participating Entities	16
Administrative Unit (AU)	-
Local Educational Agency (LEA)	
LEA Governing Boards	
LEA Superintendents	
LEA Special Education Administrators	
Community Advisory Committee (CAC)	
Additional Elements of the Local Plan	20
Annual Budget Plan	
Annual Service Plan	20
Programs for Early Childhood Special Education	20
Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements	20
Utilization of General Education Resources	
Reading Criteria	
Access to Core Curriculum	
Low Incidence Funds	
Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School	
Policies, Procedures, and Local Agreements	
Amendments to the Local Plan	
Public Addressing the Governing Body	
Dispute Resolution	
Legal References	254

Participating Local Educational Agencies

Antelope School District Corning Union Elementary School District Corning Union High School District Evergreen Union Elementary School District Elkins Elementary School Flournoy Elementary School Gerber Union Elementary School Kirkwood Elementary School Lassen View Union Elementary School District Los Molinos Unified School District Red Bluff Joint Union High School District Reeds Creek Elementary School District Richfield Elementary School District Tehama County Department of Education Insert SED-LP1 Certification by Administrative Agency

Insert SED-LP2 Certification by CAC

SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY (LEA) ASSURANCES

1. FREE APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(1))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a free appropriate public education is available to all children residing in the LEA between the ages of three through 21 inclusive, including students with disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from school.

2. FULL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY (20 USC § 1412 (a)(2))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all pupils with disabilities have access to educational programs, nonacademic programs, and services available to non-disabled pupils.

3. CHILD FIND (20 USC § 1412 (a)(3))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all children with disabilities residing in the State, including children with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children attending private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, and who are in need of special education and related services are identified, located and evaluated. A practical method is developed and implemented to determine which students with disabilities are currently receiving needed special education and related services.

4. INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM (IEP) AND INDIVIDUALIZED FAMILY SERVICE PLAN (IFSP) (20 USC § 1412 (a)(4))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or an Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) is developed, reviewed and revised for each child with a disability who requires special education and related services in order to benefit from his/her individualized education program. It shall be the policy of this LEA that a review of an IEP will be conducted on at least an annual basis to review a student's progress and make appropriate revisions.

5. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT (20 USC § 1412 (a)(5))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with disabilities, including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children who are not disabled. Special class, separate schooling, or other removal of a student with disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the disability of the student is such that education in general classes with the use of supplemental aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.

6. PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(6))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be afforded all procedural safeguards throughout the provision of a free appropriate public education including the identification, evaluation, and placement process.

7. EVALUATION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(7))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a reassessment of a student with a disability shall be conducted at least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY (20 USC § 1412 (a)(8))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data information and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their parents and families shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

9. PART C, TRANSITION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(9))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a transition process for a child who is participating in Early Intervention Programs (IDEA, Part C) with an IFSP is begun prior to a toddler's third birthday. The transition process shall be smooth, timely and effective for the child and family.

10. PRIVATE SCHOOLS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(10))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled by their parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related services pursuant to LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds will be allocated for the purpose of providing special education services to children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in private school by their parents.

11. LOCAL COMPLIANCE ASSURANCES (20 USC § 1412 (a)(11))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate local board(s) (district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special education programs; and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state and federal laws and regulations, including compliance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 of Public Law and the provisions of the California Education Code, Part 30.

12. INTERAGENCY (20 USC § 1412 (a)(12))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for interagency coordination are in effect to ensure services required for FAPE are provided, including the continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process.

13. GOVERNANCE (20 USC § 1412 (a)(13))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to support and comply with the provisions of the governance bodies and any necessary administrative support to implement the Local Plan. A final determination that an LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without first affording that LEA with reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the State Educational Agency.

14. PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(14))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to ensure that personnel providing special education related services meet the highly qualified requirements as defined under federal law, including that those personnel have the content knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. This policy shall not be construed to create a right of action on behalf of an individual student for the failure of a particular LEA staff person to be highly qualified or to prevent a parent from filing a State complaint with the CDE about staff qualifications.

15. PERFORMANCE GOALS & INDICATORS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(15))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals and indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE.

16. PARTICIPATION IN ASSESSMENTS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(16))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state and district-wide assessment programs. The IEP team determines how a student will access assessments with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments, consistent with state standards governing such determinations.

17. SUPPLEMENTATION OF STATE/FEDERAL FUNDS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(17))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of the IDEA will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA; will be used to supplement and not to supplant state, local and other Federal funds those funds.

18. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT (20 USC § 1412 (a)(18))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of local funds and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of children with disabilities except as provided in Federal law and regulations.

19. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(19))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and an opportunity for comment available to the general public, including individuals with disabilities and parents of children with disabilities are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or regulations needed to comply with Part B of the IDEA.

20. RULE OF CONSTRUCTION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(20))

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only)

21. STATE ADVISORY PANEL (20 USC § 1412 (a)(21))

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only)

22. SUSPENSION/EXPULSION (20 USC § 1412 (a)(22))

The LEA assures that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner prescribed by the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, procedures and practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be revised.

23. ACCESS TO INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS (20 USC § 1412 (a)(23))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide instructional materials to blind students or other students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state adopted National Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard.

24. OVERIDENTIFICATION AND DISPROPORTIONALITY (20 USC § 1412 (a)(24))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to prevent the inappropriate disproportionate representation by race and ethnicity of students with disabilities.

25. PROHIBITION ON MANDATORY MEDICINE (20 USC § 1412 (a)(25))

It shall be the policy of this LEA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to obtain a prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of attending school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services.

26. DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS (20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3)

(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only)

27. DATA (20 USC § 1418 a-d)

It shall be the policy of this LEA to provide data or information to the California Department of Education that may be required by regulations.

28. READING LITERACY (State Board requirement, 2/99)

It shall be the policy of this LEA that in order to improve the educational results for students with disabilities, SELPA Local Plans shall include specific information to ensure that all students who require special education will participate in the California Reading Initiative.

29. CHARTER SCHOOLS (E.C. 56207.5 (a-c))

It shall be the policy of this LEA that a request by a charter school to participate as a local educational agency in a special education local plan area may not be treated differently from a similar request made by a school district.

Governance and Administrative Structure

The local education agencies (LEAs) within Tehama County and the Tehama County Department of Education join together pursuant to Education Code Section 56195.1 (c) to adopt a plan in accordance with Education Code Section 56205 to assure equal access to special education and services for all eligible persons with disabilities residing in the geographic area served by these agencies, hereafter known as the Tehama County Special Education Local Plan Area (Tehama County SELPA). The Tehama County Department of Education is designated as the Administrative Unit (AU) for the SELPA. In adopting the Local Plan, each participating agency agrees to carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to it within the plan. Participating agencies may enter into additional contractual arrangements to meet the requirements of applicable federal and state laws.

Each district governing board and the Tehama County Department of Education shall have authority over the programs it directly maintains consistent with the local plan. Regional programs operated on behalf of the SELPA are subject to oversight by the SELPA Governing Board according to SELPA policies and procedures. Each agency shall provide special education and services to all eligible students within its boundaries, including students attending charter schools where a LEA of the SELPA has granted that charter. Charter schools with LEA status in the SELPA are responsible for special education services according to the provisions of the SELPA's Charter School policy. In addition, each agency shall cooperate to the maximum extent possible with other agencies to serve individuals with disabilities who cannot be served in the LEA of residence program. Such cooperation ensures that a range of program options is available throughout Tehama County. The county office or district governing boards may enter into agreements to provide service to pupils in special education programs maintained by other districts or counties and may include within their special education programs pupils residing in other districts or counties.

Governance Council

The Governance Council is the governing body for the Tehama County SELPA. The Governance Council is comprised of the superintendents from each participating LEA and the TCDE. Superintendents are responsible to each of their respective governing boards. The superintendent of the Administrative Unit serves as the chairperson for the Governance Council. The SELPA Administrator is an ex-officio member.

All council members have one vote and decisions will be made by a two thirds majority vote except in circumstances where state or federal mandates require a unanimous vote. Designees may attend meetings on behalf of a superintendent but may not be voting members. A quorum shall consist of 10 members. A two thirds majority vote, in this instance, must include at least 5 districts that are program operators and 1 district that is not a program operator.

The Governance Council meets a minimum of two times per school year. All meetings of the council shall be held according to Brown Act requirements. The notice and minutes of all regular meetings shall be sent to all district superintendents, the president

of the Community Advisory Committee, and others as requested. The SELPA Administrator prepares agendas and disseminates minutes from Governance Council meetings.

The responsibilities of the Governance council include but are not limited to the following:

- a. to appoint representatives to the Executive Committee,
- b. to review and take action to approve or deny amendments to the local plan,
- c. to make changes in the allocation model and expenditure agreements as necessary,
- d. to approve or deny requests for program transfers and
- e. to address any other items determined necessary by the Executive Committee.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is comprised of the following:

- the superintendent of the administrative unit (TCDE)
- the superintendent from each LEA that is designated a program operator
- the superintendent from three LEAs that do not operate special education programs

The Executive Committee shall appoint members to serve as chair and vice-chair. Members shall be appointed for two years and may be re-appointed for additional terms-Appointments shall take effect on July. The SELPA Administrator is an ex-officio member.

Each representative shall have one vote and decisions will be made by majority vote except in circumstances where state or federal mandates require a unanimous vote. A majority vote must include at least one vote from an LEA that does not operate special education programs. A quorum shall consist of 7 members present. A majority vote, in these cases, must include at least one district that is not a program operator. Designees may attend meetings on behalf of a superintendent but may not be voting members.

The Executive Committee shall meet not less than 4 times per school year, but may meet more often as needed. Additional meetings may be called at the request of any representative on the committee. All meetings of the committee shall be held according to Brown Act requirements. The committee chair(s) and the SELPA Administrator shall prepare the agenda for each meeting; the SELPA Administrator shall provide all support materials. The chair or vice-chair shall conduct the meeting.

The notice and minutes of all regular meetings shall be sent to all district superintendents, the president of the Community Advisory Committee, and others as requested.

Executive Committee responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to:

- a. Recommending action on proposed amendments to the local plan to the Governance Council.
- b. Recommending allocation plans for the distribution of federal, state and local funds allocated for special education programs to the Governance Council.
- c. Taking action to approve or deny annual service and budget plans and revisions to those plans.
- d. Taking action to approve or deny SELPA policies, administrative regulations, procedures, resolutions, and guidelines for the management and implementation of special education programs and services within the SELPA.
- e. Collaborate with the Administrative Unit regarding the recruitment, selection and evaluation of the SELPA Administrator.
- f. Providing direction to the SELPA Administrator for regionalized and program specialist services.
- g. Directing that data be gathered, interpreted, and reported regarding the implementation, administration and operation of the local plan.
- h. Reviewing data in order to monitor planned and actual accomplishments of special education programs in the districts that comprise the local plan.
- i. Authorizing ad hoc committees for the purpose of assisting the executive committee to study and explore solutions regarding designated issues
- j. Analyze, review and make appropriate recommendations regarding fiscal issues that impact the SELPA to the Governance Council
- 1. Collaboration among members to develop policies and implement the Local Plan to ensure that all students within the SELPA are provided with a continuum of services and free and appropriate public education

Special Focus Other Committees

Subject to approval from the governing council or executive committee, the SELPA Administrator may convene. Ad Hoc Committees and appoint members as needed to address current issues. Membership on these committees is designed to fulfill a particular task within a specified time frame. SELPA personnel or selected representatives will serve as chairpersons of committees.

SELPA Administrator

The SELPA Administrator for the Tehama County SELPA serves two important functions, administrator of the SELPA and program administrator for the Tehama County Department of Education. Because of the dual nature of this position, all matters related to the hiring, supervision and evaluation of this person shall be performed by the AU in collaboration

with the Executive Committee.

The SELPA Administrator assures equal access to all programs and services in the SELPA and provides advice to members of the public, including parents or guardians of individuals with exceptional needs who are receiving services under the local plan, on the availability of established due process and legal service options and procedures. In cooperation with the California Department of Education, the SELPA Administrator provides information to ensure that all special education pupils receive due process of law. Specific duties include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Coordinating implementation of all components of the local plan.
- 2. Preparing and submitting approved annual budget and service plans.
- 3. Developing, implementing, supervising, and evaluating regionalized services.
- 4. Supervising and evaluating SELPA staff.
- 5. Developing and ensuring implementation of policies, procedures, and local agreements that will ensure that all students are provided with a free and appropriate public education.
- 6. Developing and maintaining interagency agreements with appropriate public agencies to ensure a full range of special education programs and services.
- 7. Assisting the executive committee to develop plans for the allocation of state and federal funds for special education
- 8. Ensuring appropriate use of federal, state, and local funds allocated for special education.
- 9. Preparing program and fiscal reports required by the LEAs, SELPA, and California Department of Education.
- 10. Developing and implementing a plan for personnel development, including training of staff and parents.
- 11. Providing technical assistance and consultation to LEAs in all areas of special education, including complaint and due process procedures.
- 12. Adopting and implementing a management information system.
- 13. Establishing and maintaining a positive relationship with all members of the SELPA.
- 14. Informing the superintendents of the status of the special education programs.
- 15. Providing programs and services approved by the Governance Council

- 16. Assisting LEA's to access services not available within the district
- 17. Monitoring non-public school and agency contracts and placements
- 18. Serving as an ex-officio member of the Governance Council and the Executive Committee.

As program administrator for the Tehama County Department of Education, the SELPA Administrator is responsible for the operation of special education programs and services provided by the Tehama County Department of Education. Specific duties include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Assists in the recruitment and selection of personnel.
- 2. Develops and maintains budgets to support special education programs and services
- 3. Develops and monitors staff assignments and schedules
- 4. Coordinates the supervision and evaluation of certificated and classified staff
- 5. Attends IEP meetings as necessary
- 6. Coordinates, schedules, and oversees periodic meetings with staff for the purpose of program improvement, communication, and staff development.
- 7. Completes staff evaluations, as necessary, and makes recommendations to the director of personnel regarding probationary employees.
- 8. Supervises the operation of the special education office
- 9. Develops and maintains the budget for the transportation department
- 10. Coordinates the provision of transportation services and the supervision and evaluation of transportation staff

Regionalized Services and Program Specialists Assurances

As a condition of receiving funds for regionalized services and the direct instructional support of program specialists, the SELPA assures that all regionalized operations and services listed below are provided in accordance with the local plan:

- 1. A coordinated system of identification and assessment.
- 2. A coordinated system of procedural safeguards.
- 3. A coordinated system of staff development and parent education.
- 4. A coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum.
- 5. A coordinated system of internal program review, evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan, and implementation of a local plan accountability mechanism.
- 6. A coordinated system of data collection and management.
- 7. Coordination of interagency agreements.
- 8. Coordination of services to medical facilities.
- 9. Coordination of services to licensed children's institutions and foster homes.
- 10. Preparation and transmission of required SELPA reports.
- 11. Fiscal and logistical support of the CAC.
- 12. Coordination of career, vocational and transition services.
- 13. Coordination of transportation services for individuals with exception needs.
- 14. Means by which full educational opportunity is ensured.
- 15. Fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds.

Program Specialists

Program specialists are employed through the AU and serve the SELPA under the direction of the SELPA Administrator. The SELPA Administrator evaluates program specialists.

Program specialists shall be appropriately credentialed, have advanced training and related experiences in the education of individuals with disabilities and have specialized in-depth knowledge in one or more areas of disabling condition. The role of the program specialist includes but is not limited to the following:

- 1. Conduct observations, consult with, and assist special and general education staff, administrators, and parents regarding appropriate placement and services for students.
- 2. Participate in program development, primarily in the area of his or her expertise.
- 3. Coordinate curricular resources and take leadership in ensuring the use of appropriate instructional methods, strategies, interventions, and resources.
- 4. Facilitate the development and implementation of staff development and parent education activities.
- 5. Assist LEAs in completing program reviews, monitoring compliance, and resolving disputes regarding special education programs and services.
- 6. Assist in assuring that students have full educational opportunities.
- 7. Provide other services as needed.

Roles and Responsibilities of Participating Entities Administrative Unit (AU)

The TCDE shall serve as the AU for the SELPA and perform the following functions:

- 1. Receive and distribute special education funds for the operation of special education programs and services, according to the locally approved Special Education Funding Allocation Plan.
- 2. Provide administrative support, including establishing and maintaining an office for SELPA staff.
- 3. Employment of staff as necessary to carry out the implementation of the local plan.
- 4. Collaborate with the Executive Committee in the recruitment, hiring, supervision and evaluation of the SELPA Administrator.
- 5. Collaborate with the executive committee regarding the recruitment and employment of staff hired in support of SELPA operations.

The Tehama County Department of Education (AU) provides certain special education programs and services as approved by the SELPA Governance Council. The AU is reimbursed by the participating districts for the excess costs related to the provision of services by the TCDE and SELPA Office according to the SELPA approved billback formula.

Local Educational Agency (LEA)

LEA's are responsible for ensuring that children with disabilities are educated in the least restrictive environment. Placement in special education programs or services occurs only when the nature or severity of the disability is such that the child's education, even with the use of modifications of the general education program or use of supplementary aids or programs, cannot be achieved satisfactorily. Children with disabilities are served in their home districts whenever the needs identified on the individualized education program can be met within the home district.

LEAs are allocated special education funds based on their ability to meet all of the following requirements:

- demonstrate fiscal capability,
- demonstrate the ability to comply with student IEPs,
- to provide adequate support of special education staff,

and are subject to local plan policies and agreements. LEA's, authorized by the Governance Council, are allocated funds based on the SELPA funding allocation plan and operate their own special education programs/services. LEA's that do not receive special education funding are provided services through the TCDE or by arrangement with another LEA or authorized non-public school.

LEA responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Coordinating and conducting child find activities.
- 2. Identifying and serving students in medical, foster or LCI facilities.
- 3. Participating in state/district-wide assessments.
- 4. Operating special education programs and services according to SELPA guidelines
- 5. Complying with state and federal laws and regulations regarding special education.
- 6. Responding to compliance and due process complaints and implementing the decisions of compliance investigations or due process hearings.
- 7. Utilizing the same management information system, forms, procedures and guidelines as all other districts within Tehama County.
- 8. Collecting and completing state and federal report requirements; including California Special Education Management Information System (CASEMIS) reports, self-reviews, and verification reviews.
- 9. Monitoring the appropriate use of federal, state and local funds.
- 10. Complying with state and federal requirements regarding maintenance of effort
- 11. Cooperation with other LEAs to ensure the provision of services to all identified students in the SELPA

LEA Governing Boards

The governing board of each participating school district authorizes its district's participation in the Tehama County Local Plan for Special Education through its approval of the local plan.

The local governing board responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Approval of the local plan.
- 2. Approval for the operation of district special education programs
- 3. Adoption of policies and procedures for special education programs and services within their districts.
- 4. LEA compliance with all elements of the local plan.

- 5. Input on SELPA policies and procedures through the district superintendent's participation on the Governance Council.
- 6. Appointment of representatives to the CAC.

Tehama County Department of Education Governing Board

The governing board for the Tehama County Department of Education is responsible for the appointment of members to the CAC and serves as the appellate body in cases related to the expulsion of special education students. The governing board participates in the development of SELPA policies and procedures through the county superintendent's membership on the SELPA Governance Council.

LEA Superintendents

The district superintendents are responsible to their respective Boards of Education. The district superintendents and county superintendent participate on the SELPA Governance Council and assist in the development and approval of policies for the operation of the Special Education Local Plan Area.

Local superintendents are responsible for preparing their district's special education budgets and for the operation of programs and services within their districts, as well as maintenance and operation of the physical plants housing special education programs and services.

Responsibilities of the Local Education Agency (County/District) Superintendent in the implementation of the Local Plan include, but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Assist in the identification of special education program and service needs for the Tehama County SELPA through participation on the Governance Council.
- 2. Communicate SELPA information to their governing boards.
- 3. Collecting information on program operations and reporting to the SELPA Administrator
- 4. Managing the operation of local special education programs and services
- 5. Providing assistance in due process and complaint procedures

LEA Special Education Administrators

LEA special education administrators are responsible for the coordination of special education services and programs within their agencies and for the implementation of policies and procedures set forth in the local plan.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

The Tehama County SELPA Community Advisory Committee (CAC) serves in an advisory capacity. CAC membership shall be composed *of* parents of individuals with exceptional needs enrolled in public or private schools, parents of other students enrolled in school, students with disabilities, adults with disabilities, general education teachers,

special education teachers, other school personnel, representatives of other public and private agencies, and persons concerned with the needs of individuals with exceptional needs. At least a majority of the CAC shall be composed of parents of students enrolled in schools participating in the local plan and at least a majority of such parents shall be parents of individuals with exceptional needs.

CAC members shall be appointed by and responsible to LEA governing boards. The SELPA Administrator or designee serves as ex officio member of the CAC and acts as the liaison between the CAC, the Executive Committee and the Governance Council.

CAC responsibilities include:

- 1. Advising the policy and administrative entity on the development, amendment, and review of the local plan.
- 2. Recommending annual priorities to be addressed by the SELPA.
- 3. Assisting in parent education and in recruiting parents and other volunteers who may contribute to the implementation of the plan.
- 4. Encouraging community involvement in the development of the local plan.
- 5. Supporting activities on behalf of individuals with exceptional needs.
- 6. Assisting in parent awareness of the importance of regular school attendance.

The CAC shall meet no less than two times per year. All meetings of the committee shall be held according to law and the Brown Act.

Announcements of CAC meetings and activities will be distributed to parents of children with special needs in the SELPA. In addition, information will be posted on the SELPA web page.

Additional Elements of the Local Plan

Annual Budget Plan

The SELPA shall adopt an annual budget plan at a public hearing in compliance with all legal mandates. The annual budget plan shall identify expected income and expenditures as required by state and federal laws.

Annual Service Plan

The SELPA shall adopt an annual service plan at a public hearing in compliance with all legal mandates. The service plan provides an overview of the programs and services available within the SELPA.

Programs for Early Childhood Special Education

The SELPA provides intensive special education services to infants with low incidence disabilities birth through age two. Through its agreement with the Far Northern Regional Center, the SELPA coordinates the smooth transition of services for infants who are eligible for services upon turning age three. The Interagency Agreement between the Tehama County SELPA and the Far Northern Regional Center is included herein.

The SELPA has established a systematic method of referral for all students age three to five years of age suspected of being disabled and in need of services. The SELPA provides a full continuum of services for all students age three to five found eligible pursuant to EC 56441.11.

Services for infants and children three to five years of age with disabilities are updated yearly and described in detail in the SELPA Annual Service Plan included herein.

Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements

The SELPA Administrator, in collaboration with the appropriate LEA representatives, shall annually review the placement of each student attending a nonpublic, nonsectarian school to determine if all contracted services are being provided and whether the student is making satisfactory progress toward returning to a public school placement.

The review will include an analysis of the evaluations conducted by the nonpublic, nonsectarian school to ensure that they were appropriate and valid for measuring pupil progress. The LEA may choose to administer additional assessments as necessary, with parent consent where required, to determine whether the pupil is making adequate educational progress.

Utilization of General Education Resources

Each LEA shall ensure that a pupil is referred for special educational instruction and services only after the resources of the general education program have been considered and, where appropriate, utilized. Such resources may include, but not be limited to, response to intervention models, student success teams, early literacy programs, and remedial programs.

Reading Criteria

Each LEA shall ensure that all eligible children with disabilities will participate in the California Reading Initiative in order to improve their educational results. Special education instructional personnel will participate in staff development in-service opportunities in the area of literacy that includes:

- 1. Information about current literacy and learning research.
- 2. State adopted standards and frameworks.
- 3. Increased participation of students with disabilities in statewide student assessments.
- 4. Research-based instructional strategies for teaching reading to a wide range of diverse learners in order to increase the percentage of children with disabilities who are literate.

Access to Core Curriculum

Each LEA shall ensure that students with disabilities will have access to:

- 1. All required core curriculum including state adopted core curriculum and supplementary materials.
- 2. Instructional materials and support.

Low Incidence Funds

Funds for low incidence equipment, materials, and supplies as well as for low incidence services are restricted to support students in the following disability categories: hard-of-hearing, deaf, visual disability, severely orthopedically impaired, and deaf-blind. The funds are administered through the Tehama County SELPA and include receipt of funds, expenditure of funds, maintenance of an inventory, development of procedures for exchange of equipment, and reporting to the state.

Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School

Charter schools may participate in the local plan either as a school within a participating LEA or as an LEA approved by the SELPA.

A request by a charter school to participate as an LEA in the Tehama County SELPA will not be treated differently from a similar request made by a school district. In reviewing and approving such a request, the following requirements shall apply:

- 1. The charter school shall participate in state and federal funding for special education and receive funding in the same manner as other LEAs of the SELPA as specified in the SELPA funding allocation plan.
- 2. The charter school shall participate in the governance of the SELPA in the same manner as other LEAs of the SELPA.

Policies, Procedures, and Local Agreements

SELPA policies, procedures, and local agreements necessary to support the implementation of the local plan, and as required by legal mandates, have been developed and are available upon request. These documents can be requested through the SELPA office.

Amendments to the Local Plan

The SELPA Administrator shall be responsible for the coordination of the development of any proposed amendments to the local plan.

Amendments to the permanent portion of the local plan may be considered at any time. The Governance Council may adopt changes to the local plan on an interim basis, not to exceed one school year. To formally adopt proposed and interim amendments the following procedure shall be followed:

- 1. A committee comprised of representatives of special and regular education teachers and administrators as well as parent members of the CAC or parents selected by the CAC shall be convened to provide input and make recommendations regarding the proposed or interim amendments to the local plan. (EC 56195.9)
- 2. The CAC and other advisory groups as determined appropriate by the SELPA Administrator will review the recommended amendments to the local plan, as presented by the committee, and provide additional input and revision, if needed.
- 3. The Executive Committee will review the recommended amendments, propose any final revisions, and submit the final draft to the Governance Council for approval.
- 4. The Governance Council will review and approve the final draft amendments of the local plan and submit to the LEA governing boards for approval.
- 5. LEA governing boards will review and take action on the recommended amendments to the local plan within 60 days of submission from the Governance Council.
- 6. Amendments require the approval of each LEA governing board.
- a. Following approval by all LEA governing boards, the SELPA will submit the local plan to the California Department of Special Education for submission to the State Board of Education.

Public Addressing the Governing Body Input

Members of the public, including parents or guardians of students with disabilities, may address questions or concerns to the governing boards of each LEA, the SELPA Governance Council, the Executive Committee, and/or the CAC. Opportunities for public input will be included on agendas of each committees. The Tehama County SELPA Administrator and District Special Education Administrators are also available to meet with parents or members of the public who may have questions or concerns. Meetings can be arranged by contacting the SELPA office.

Dispute Resolution

In the event of a disagreement among LEAs, LEAs and the Responsible Local Agency (RLA), LEAs and/or the RLA and the SELPA regarding the distribution of funding, responsibility for service provision and any other governance activities specified in the Local Plan, it is the intent of the SELPA Governing Board that issues be resolved at the lowest level possible. The SELPA Governing Board is the board of last resort. This process is intended to resolve disagreements within a period of 45 days, but is not intended to undermine local authority.

If a local education agency disagrees with a decision or practice of another agency or the SELPA, that local education agency has a responsibility to discuss and attempt resolution of the disagreement with the party, or parties, directly involved. The parties involved will present the issues to their respective superintendents, or designees, who will attempt to resolve the matter. Either party may request the assistance of the SELPA Administrator, or his/her designee, or the Chair of the SELPA Governing Board. If this process fails, the parties may pursue a hearing on the issues and resolution with SELPA Governing Board.

If either party disagrees with the recommendation of the SELPA Governing Board, and the dispute relates to the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service provision or other governance activities specified within the Local Plan, the party may submit the dispute to mediation. The parties will make a good faith effort to mutually agree to a mediator with expertise related to the dispute. If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, the SELPA Administrator will secure the services of a recognized mediator or from a professional mediation agency.

Any dispute unresolved in mediation, arising from a dispute that relates to the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service provision or other governance activities specified within the Local Plan shall be settled by arbitration. The arbitration decision shall be made by a panel of three, including one person selected by each party and a neutral chair of the panel agreed upon by the other two panel members. The mediator involved in the parties' mediation may serve as the panel chair.

Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of the mediator's and/or arbitrator's and administrative fees of arbitration. The power and jurisdiction of an arbitrator shall be limited to adjudicating the rights and responsibilities of the parties. The arbitrator shall not have the power to determine constitutional issues or issues outside the scope of Education Code section 56205(b) (5).

A more detailed description of the procedures related to dispute resolution can be found in the SELPA Policies and Procedures Manual kept on file in the SELPA.

Legal References Federal Requirements: 20 USC 1412 (a), 20 USC 1413 (a) (1), 20 USC 1413 (a) (5) ⁹

State Requirements: EC 47645, 56001 (f)¹, 56140, 56190-56194⁶, 56195.1 (c)⁵, 56195.9³, 56205, 56207.5